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PLAYERS
Selecting Partners
Academic School:

University of Utah

Contact:

Leissa Roberts

Phone Number:

(801) 581-5471

E-mail Address:

leissa.roberts@nurs.utah.edu

Practice Setting:

Department of Human Services Division of Juvenile Justice Services (JJS)

Contact:

Susan Burke, Director, Utah Juvenile Justice

Phone Number:

801-538-8224

E-mail Address:

sburke@utah.gov

Preparing for Your First Meeting
Date/Time of Meeting 1998

Place of Meeting:

Utah Department of Health Division of Juvenile Justice Offices

What do you and your partner need to know about you and your organization?
The College of Nursing is an integral part of the University of Utah and of University Health. We are committed to working together
to serve the people of Utah and beyond by continually improving the quality of life for individuals and communities. We strive for
excellence in education, research, and clinical care; each mission is vital to our overall success. Diversity, inclusiveness, independent
inquiry, and collegiality form the fabric of everyday life for faculty and students. University Health is the Mountain West's only
academic health sciences care system, combining excellence in patient care, the latest in research, and teaching to provide leadingedge health care. Our goal is to continually improve individual and community health and quality of life.
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PARTNERSHIPS
Initial Meeting
What is the right partnership activity for you and your partner?
The correct partnership for the College of Nursing (CON) and Utah’s Juvenile Justice Services (JJS) is in the provision of high quality,
evidence based, cost effective health care delivered to youth in custody. This collaboration strives to create a partnership and system
that will deliver the right care at the right time by the right provider; ensuring that all providers are working at the top of their
license. This relationship was established in 1998 and has been sustained through a formal contract. The entities shared vision and
expectations are clearly articulated via the contract. The CON offers professional health care services to justice-involved youth. Each
entity is a non-profit in the umbrella of services provided by the State of Utah. Per agreement the clinical contract shall: (1) Provide
an arena for JJS and the CON to work together to provide excellent physical & mental health care for justice-involved youth. (2) Help
to meet the accreditation requirements of JJS in the arena of health care. (3) Provide opportunities for inter-professional student
placements for the CON. Mutual respect and trust will be garnered though daily engagement and interaction of JJS & CON staff.
What documents about your organization should you bring to the meeting?
A request for proposal (RFP) was created by DHS/JJS. Following the RFP, the CON created a proposal to address the health care of
the youth and created a proposal budget. The CON also supplied:
Institution's Mission, Vision, and Values.
Institution's Organization Chart.
Scope of services and justification for the scope.
Staffing proposal for Registered Nurses (RNs) and Advance Practice Nurses (APRNs) to work at the top of their license.
Institution's recruitment and retention plan, specific to the general partnership agreement between the CON and JJS.
Institution's awards and recognitions and proof of CON's ability to perform as expected in the partnership.

What do you have to offer?
Prior to contracting with the CON, JJS had one physician and a few RNs providing care in five facilities and accreditation metrics were
not being met. The CON provides: (1) a leadership matrix ensuring each JJS facility is staffed with APRNs and RNs thus ensuring JJS
meets the care metrics outlined by their accreditation body; (2) evidence based care delivered by expert clinicians and educators; (3)
cost containment. The CON can help JJS avoid unnecessary medical transports to the emergency department or for outside specialty
care (each trip outside the facility requires two JJS staff). The CON provides JJS access to an on-call Nurse Practitioner 24/7. Not only
does the CON provide committed and passionate staff, additionally they provide students who produce posters on educational
topics and translational research through scholarly projects every six months.

What is your vision for this partnership and does your partner share this vision?
The shared vision for this partnership is to:
1. Ensure that all youth receive the appropriate care at the right time using APRNs and RNs at the top of their license.
2. Expand evidence based care provided in the facilities - including mental health services.
3. Initiate a Sexually Transmitted Infection (STI) screening protocol that will eventually become hardwired into care at every JJS
facility in the state of Utah.
4. Attain a culture of trust, respect and shared decision making regarding care of youth with consideration for national policy and
accreditation standards.
5. To be committed to a nurse led practice environment in addition to ensuring interprofessional collaboration and education. All
levels of nursing students plus medical residents are able to experience justice care under CON preceptors.
Who else needs to be involved in both organizations? Is top leadership involved?
From the CON, we will include the Associate Dean of Faculty Practice and both the Clinical and Administrative Directors. JJS shall
include the Juvenile Justice Director, and the JJS Director of finance. These are the parties who will negotiate the parameters and
terms of the contract with input from the RNs in each facility. Once the terms are agreed upon, both parties will send the prospective
contract to their respective legal counsel. If legal issues arise, they are negotiated by the two legal counsels with input from each
party. Once the terms of the contract are finalized, the Dean of the CON is informed and with her approval the contract is sent to the
Vice President of Health Sciences for a signature. The VP's signature binds the contract which is then sent to JJS for signatures.
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What is the business case for the partnership?
JJS must provide health care to justice youth based on their accreditation standards and the youth’s constitutional rights regarding
access to health care. The CON has the professional expertise to provide said health care. Additionally, each partner is an entity of
the State of Utah which enables JJS to contract directly with the CON ensuring stability of the care provider from year to year, rather
than having to go to bid every 3 years. JJS also has a partner who is willing and able to implement cost saving measures
immediately. The cost of purchasing services similar to what the CON delivers would be more expensive in the private sector. The
CON not only benefits financially it meets the practice mission by providing practice sites for faulty to practice and maintain
certification. JJS sites provide inter-professional education and inter-professional collaborative practice which enhances the
academic, research and service mission.

Subsequent Meetings
Do you have clarity on goals and vision?
Yes. The College of Nursing and Juvenile Justice Services have a clinical contract outlining the expectations and responsibilities for
each party. Both entities share the vision of providing evidence based, financially responsible, quality health care to JJS youth. JJS
and the CON leadership meet quarterly to provide updates on shared goals and facilitate understanding and clarity between the
two worlds of correction and health care. Quality improvement and or research projects are discussed at quarterly meetings to allow
for JJS input and perspective. For example: (1) Two CON faculty are conducting research on Type 1 diabetics incarcerated in the
juvenile justice system with a goal of providing optimal care and informing new best practice. (2) DNP students have provided
projects on sexual health and motivational interviewing with both projects benefiting youth, and CON and JJS staff. Both scholarly
projects have been accepted to the National Correctional Health Care conference and thus will be disseminated nationally.

What are the details and time line of the initiative?
The two teams meet daily in each facility with RNs and facility staff coming together around care of youth. Weekly APRNs and RNs
collaborate with facility staff to provide appropriate physical and mental health care of youth. The CON team meets monthly with all
staff and faculty to discuss facility concerns and youth needs. The provider team meets monthly to discuss statistics, difficult cases
and update guidelines and standing orders. The clinical director and manager meet with facility directors monthly to discuss issues
and changes. They also meet with the JJS Program Director quarterly. The CON send out quarterly statistics and reports for each
facility. The CON leadership team meets with the JJS leadership team every 6 months to discuss upcoming initiatives and create
common goals. The financial teams meet annually and more often as needed to negotiate service additions and or changes.
Since 1998 contracts have been negotiated every three years. In 2017, the first CON/JJS five-year contract was approved.

Whom can we call for expert consultation if needed?
Several resources are available at each entity. At the CON the following are available for consultation: the Associate Dean of Faculty
Practice, Leissa Roberts, DNP; Jennie Noren, MS, RN, NEA-C Administrative Director; Jennifer Clifton, FNP-C, DNP, Clinical Director;
Chase Roberts, MBA, Operations Manager, Susan Scott, MS, PMHNP and Nikki Mihalopoulos, MD. Dr.s Clifton and Mihalopoulos can
be consulted 24/7 related to clinical emergencies that arise in JJS facilities.
JJS Program Directors April Graham, Mike Butkovich, and Donovan Bergstrom are available to answer questions about policies and
procedure for any of the JJS locations. Susan Burke, Director of Juvenile Justice Services and Cecil Robinson, Chief Financial officer
are available for consultation regarding enforcement, budget and executive oversight.

What are the expected outcomes of the activity?
The CON and JJS teams meet and discuss appropriate metrics for care as well as mutual goals. These metrics help JJS: (1) meet their
accreditation standards and (2) justify the care expenditure for incarcerated youth to the Utah legislature. Care is evaluated on an
ongoing basis with RNs tracking statics on a daily basis. Statistics are reviewed monthly within CON meetings and again quarterly.
Quarterly statistics and reports are sent to all of the CON team and to all of JJS leadership.
Expected outcome for the CON are faculty practice sites that provide inter-professional education and inter-professional
collaborative practice which enhances the academic, research and service mission. Regarding scholarly activities, the CON retains
the copyright of all guidelines, polices, procedures or tools the CON develops. JJS may not share or publish CON intellectual
property; however, they may use in their facilities. Authorship of published scholarly projects is discussed and decided among facult
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ENVIRONMENT
Time
Is this the right time for this partnership?
Yes - the initial timing of the partnership was precipitated by JJS being in crisis regarding care for the youth in their custody. Care
prior to the CON contract was based on a mixture of a contracted physician provider and in-house nurses. One major difficulty for JJS
with was that they had non-medical staff overseeing nursing personal and overriding medical decisions sometimes to the detriment
of the youth in custody. The previous physician provider was a private contractor who came at a high cost with little ROI. The CON
was able to provide a leadership matrix and nursing structure to deliver evidence based care at a cost that was acceptable to JJS.
Youth in JJS are a high-risk population who often have many unmet physical, developmental, and mental health needs. Throughout
their lives, many of these individuals have received inadequate or no health care (American Academy of Pediatrics, 2011). The CON
had the expertise to deliver care and desired to expand practice and educational sites for RN and NP students

What are the issues that will facilitate or impede the development of the partnership?
Facilitators: A common interest in providing the best possible health care for youth in juvenile custody. The ability of leadership in
the CON to design, implement and exhibit sustainability of an innovative patient centered, evidence based model of care for youth
in custody. The CON’s ability to identify, collect and analyze useful metrics and care data. The assurance of quarterly reports and
transparency of all metrics tracked. The CON managed facilities outperform the non CON facilities regarding care metrics for JJS
accreditation. JJS has asked the CON to provide care in all JJS facilities state wide. The barrier to this is geography - the sheer size of
the State of Utah.
Impediments: One of the biggest difficulties has been the introduction of mental health care services. JJS has not traditionally
viewed mental health as their responsibility. Partially because of state laws regarding who can consent to the mental health
treatment of a child in custody and partially because they view psychiatry medications as expensive.
What is the time commitment for the partners?
The commitment for fulfillment of the contract from the CON side is 24x7 with the provision of an on call provider to ensure
emergency care. The time commitment to each of the facilities the CON provides care in is variable depending on their census, daily
admissions and they type of youth being cared for. Each facility has between 30 and 96 hours of nursing care weekly. The CON RNs
and line staff talk multiple times daily. APRN and RNs communicate daily. All CON staff attend monthly meetings. All CON providers
attend monthly meetings. Monthly meetings are held between the Clinic Manager and JJS facility directors. Quarterly leadership
meetings are held with The CON Clinical Director and the CON Clinic manager JJS Program Directors who oversee multiple facilities
The CON leadership team meets bi-monthly to review progress of projects from the previous meeting, discuss new tasks, issues, and
areas of opportunities and improvement. CON leadership meet with JJS leadership every 6 months or more as needed.

Whose time will be required?
Everyone’s time is required in differencing amounts. The Dean’s time is required only once at the time of contract signing. The
Associate Dean of Faculty Practice and the Administrative Director’s time is required weekly to track any issues that arise and to
promote kudos for the team. The Clinical Director’s time is needed daily for facility check-in and 24-hour call. The Clinical Director
also serves as a resource for JJS administration one a weekly or sometimes daily basis. The Clinic manager position works 32 hours
weekly. The Program Director’s time is required daily and is generally in facilities at least weekly and sometimes biweekly. RNs,
APRNs. MAs and students are in the facilities daily providing direct patient care to youth. The JJS line staff are also in facilities daily
around the clock. The contract defines the time for each paid role, (Medical Director, Clinical Director, Clinic Manager, Advanced
Practice Nurses, Registered Nurses, and Medical and Administrative Assistants) on a 4 weeks rolling calendar

When will the meetings be scheduled?
There is a commitment to a strategic meeting every 6 months with the Associate Dean of Practice and the JJS Director. Meetings
between JJS facility and CON ‘boots on the ground’ leadership occurs quarterly to discuss any issues, problems or joint initiatives.
An example of a joint initiative is the flu protocol which involves the prevention and management of influenza in the correctional
setting. Ad hoc daily meetings occur between nursing and line staff at the JJS facilities to facilitate best practices and care of youth.
CON staff meetings occur monthly and include professional development and mentoring. Leadership meetings are scheduled
monthly and include development and implementation of ongoing educational opportunities for staff nurses as well as for students.
Each meeting allows for staff at all levels to present on a relevant educational topic. Lifelong learning for self and others is the
cornerstone for these meetings.
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ENVIRONMENT
Space
What space is required for the activity?
Each JJS facility has a medical office with an examination room to facilitate the care of youth. Additional meeting space is secured
either at the facility, at the JJS offices or at the CON as required.

What equipment and supplies are needed?
Each medical office will need to be equipped with an examination bed and typical medical supplies such as a scales, stadiometer, BP
cuff, gloves, sharps containers, needles, syringes, medicine cups, gauze, scissors, sterile drapes, and appropriate medical instruments
for a variety of procedures. Point of care testing supplies and machines will also be needed. In addition; office furniture, computers,
secure medication carts, vaccine temperature controlled refrigerators and secure medical record storage. A space for secure
conversations and privacy during health interviews is needed

What money is needed?
Each job role (RN, APRN, MD) is contracted at an hourly rate and each facility is contracted to receive a certain number of hours of
each role on a weekly, or 4-week basis. The CON will invoice JJS every 4 weeks for hours worked in each job role – per the contract.
The payment of the JJS invoice will pay CON employee’s salary and benefits. Additional money needed for medical office equipment
and supplies will be paid for by JJS. The CON is good stewards of community resources and will make requests for medical
equipment and supplies to each JJS Facility Director to make sure costs stay contained.

Where are we meeting?
Typically, the bi-yearly meeting between leadership and the quarterly meetings between the CON Clinical Director, Clinic Manager
and JJS Program Directors occur at the JJS offices in downtown Salt Lake City, Utah. Ad hoc meetings occur in the JJS facilities. CON
staff meetings occur in the JJS facilities. CON provider meetings occur in the CON or in the Williams building which houses the
Department of Pediatrics.

Where will we present outcomes?
Outcomes will be presented at the quarterly meeting. Additionally, Key Performance Indicators (KPI) will be communicated quarterly
in electronic format from the CON to JJS. Student scholarly projects and faculty scholarship will be presented at national meetings,
such as AACN Faculty Practice Conference, the Western Institute of Nursing annual conference, the American Academy of Pediatric
Nurse practitioners conference and the National Commission on Correctional Health Care (NCCHC). Outcomes may also be reported
in the form of an article for an appropriate peer reviewed journal. Outcomes are also presented to JJS administration at their semiannual statewide retreat.
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ENVIRONMENT
Regulation
What are the policies or regulatory issues that will impede or facilitate development of the partnership on both sides?
The College of Nursing is expected to be aware of JJS policies. When a youth is sentenced to any justice facility medical care and
services must be provided to that youth per state mandate. The state mandates a timely medical intake as well as a physical
examination and access to acute care. In the provision of this care the CON provider must meet community standards. While JJS
understands access to care they don’t always agree to what the community standard of care is. These standards are often seen as
unnecessary and expensive by JJS. This mindset can impede collaboration. National health care standards, US Preventative Task
Force recommendations and NCCHC standards serve as facilitators for these conversations. CON staff often lack a background on the
intricacies correctional rules. To facilitate this understanding we enable our staff and faculty become Certified Correctional Health
Care Providers (CCHP). In order to obtain this certification, one must study the history of health care in the American correctional
system. This education provides RNs and APRNs insight into the specialized health care of incarcerated individuals.

Context
How will the partnership be funded?
The partnership is funded by the Utah legislature. The legislature for the state of Utah meets annually to determine the funding level
needed by the Department of Health, Division of Juvenile Justice to care for justice involved youth in the state of Utah. That
appropriation must cover the daily needs of youth in every facility and program provided by JJS, including the health care in the
facilities for which the CON holds the contract. If JJS funding is cut, CON services may be impacted and we will meet to adjust the
contract. The contract clearly delineates the care provided by each type of care provider in each facility and the CON may not bill
above and beyond that care. The CON can provide additional care at its own costs if desired. The hours needed to provide health
care by each provider type and the rate paid for that care in each JJS facility will be reviewed annually, as populations may increase
or decrease based off of state laws.

What are the constraints of both partners?
Human resources are constraints in both health care and corrections. The staff from each entity who are in the facility daily build a
positive working relationship with mutual respect and trust and when there is turnover that balance is disrupted. Each entity has
their own policies and procedures which can be at odds sometimes. Such as a youth who needs to miss school for a sick call while
the NP is present. Inadequate data management tools, i.e.; lack of an electronic health record is a mutual constraint as both entities
need shared population data to thoroughly complete their tasks. This includes the CON sharing healthy summary data with the
juvenile justice administration and JJS supplying the CON with census and case worker information.

What history do the partners have with each other and each others' institutions?
Prior to the 1998 contract, there was no affiliation between the Department of Human Services/ Juvenile Justice Services and the
University of Utah College of Nursing. From the time of the first contract 20 years ago the partnership has gained strength by
creating a culture of trust and respect. We have shared responsibilities for the care and outcomes of youth. We share evaluations
and promote participation on regional and nations committees to develop policy and promote best care practice for justice involved
youth. JJS supports the CON in the education of nurse of all levels and in leveraging our ability to promote all RNs attain a minimum
of a Bachelor in Nursing. The CON and JJS plan to continue an ongoing mutually satisfying long term commitment and partnership
with the hope that someday the CON may be able to overcome the geographic barrier and provide quality health care in every JJS
facility in the state of Utah.

Print

Save

6

